From: Malcolm Tuttle [mtuttle@racinggueensland.coim.au]

Sent: Friday, 15 July 2011 3:58 PM

To: Shara Murray

Subject: RE: Advice
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Mal,

Malcolm Tutile
Chief Executive Officer
[Description: Description: Description: Racing Queensland
Logo_Colour_Small} PO Box 63, Sandgate QLD 4017
P +61 7 3869 9730
F +61 7 3269 9043
M +61 419 759 457
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From: Shara Murray

Sent: Friday, 15 July 2011 3:54 PM
To: Malcolm Tuttle

Subject: Advice

Mal
I have spoken to Murray, he is still working on the advice, he will send through to me

later today.

I will send through to you once I have received it,
Regards

Shara

Shara Murray
Senior Corporate Counsel

[Description: Racing Queensland Logo_Colour Small} PO Box 63, Sandgate QLD 4817
P +61 7 3869 9712
F +61 7 3269 9843
M 0407 156 539
E
smurray@racingqueensland.com,au<mailto: smurray@racingqgueensland. com. au>
W www, racingqueensland.com.au<http://www.queenslandracing,com.au/>
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From: Shara Murray [smurray@racingqueensfand.com.au]

Sent: Friday, 15 july 2011 6:53 PM

To: Malcolm Tuttle

Subject: Fwd: [2767947:16] Executive strategy

Attachments: Letter - Chairman of Racing Queensiand Limited - Executive strategy{10820366_2).pdf;

ATTOG001.htm

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Procter, Murray" <murray,procter@nortonrose.com<mailto:murray.procter@nortonrose.com>>

Date: 15 July 2011 5:25:47 PM AEST
To: 'Shara Murray' <smurray@racingqueensland.com.au<mailto:smurray@racingqueensland.com.au>>

Subject: [2767947:16] Executive strategy

Dear Shara

Please see attached. We provide our advice at this stage in draft as requested to gauge your
views on the approach of the Board.

Once the advice is finalised we can assist you further by drafting the new executive employment
contracts if you wish,

Please let me know if you have any queries,
Kind regards

Murray

Murray Procter
Partner

Norton Rose Australia

tevel 17, 175 Eagle Street, Brisbane, Australia

Tel +61 7 3414 2914 Mob +61 485 ©82 089 Fax +61 7 3414 2899
murray.procter@nortonrose.com¢mailto:murray.procter@nortonrose. com>

Norton Rose, UK Law Firm of the Year - The Lawyer Awards 201l

Ogilvy Renault and Deneys Reitz have joined Norton Rose Group
More information on Norton Rose Group's capabilities in Canada and South Africa is available at

nortonrose. com<hittp: //www.nortonrose, com>

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be
privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender immediately, and
please delete it; you should not copy it or use it for any purpose or disclose its contents to
any other person. Norton Rose Australia and its affiliates reserve the right to monitor all email

communications through their networks.

Norton Rose Australia is a law firm as defined in the Legal Profession Acts of the Australian
states and territory in which it practises.

Norton Rose Australia together with Norton Rose LLP, Norton Rose OR LLP, Norton Rose South Africa
(incorporated as Deneys Reitz Inc) and their respective affiliates constitute Norton Rose Group,
an international legal practice with offices worldwide, details of which, with certain regulatory
information, are at <http://www.nortonrose.com> nortonrose.com<http://nortonrose.com>
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NORTON ROSE

15 July 2011
Norton Rose Australia
ABN 32 720 868 049
Level 17, 175 Eagle Strest
Email: smurray@racingqueensiand.com.au BRISBANE GLD 4000
AUSTRALIA
Tel +617 3414 2888

Private & Confidential
Fax +61 7 3414 2999

The Chairman GPO Box 407, Brisbane Qld 4001
Racing Queensiand Limited DX 114 Brisbane
c/o Ms Shara Murray www.nortonrose.com

Senior Corporate Counsel
Racing Queensland Limited
PO Box 63

SANDGATE QLD 4017

Our reference

2767947 i Istin.gamble@nortonrose.com

Dear Shara

Executive retentlon strategy

1 Instructions

1.1 We have been mstructed {0 advise the Board of Di

ctors of Racing Queensland Limited (Board)
i

1.2
benefits.
1.3 In this letter we have:
{1) considered the general abligations imposed on the Board under the Corporations Act 2001
(Cth} (Act);

{2) considered the specific requiremenis, if any, to avoid breaching the Act in relation to any
bensfits 1o be provided; and

3) provided an overview of the types of benefits that we consider would be appropriate in the
circumstances that the Board may wish to consider.

APAC-#10820368-v2
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15 July 2011 NORTON ROSE

2 Executive summary and recommendation

2.1 In determining the appropriateness of rewards for the Execullves, the real question for the Board Is
whether or not any proposed benefit or change to the benefits is unfair or unconscionable. In making
this determination, the Board should have regard to factors including:
{1} the need to retain the Executives;

(2) the level of skills and knowledge of the Executives;

(3) the limitations imposed on other companies by the Act (specifically In relation to termination
paymenis); and .

{4} current market conditions and drivers.

2.2 In circumstances where:

(1) the proposed new benetils are necessary for the f the Executive;
{2} the retention of the Executive Is In the best interés!s of RQLyand

the benefits are notl disproporiionate,

(3)

23 Our suggestion of appropriate benefi
interests of RQAL is as follows:

(1) an increase to the total remune
20%;

(2
{3)

cel tive Employment Agreement by either party
{to be decided by the Board and agreed with the

bonus linked to the achlevement of certain outcomes, with payment

‘honus deferred {say, unti half-way through the term and then at the end of the
term) and conditional on the Executive remaining employed with RQL at that time,
unless the Executive's employment is terminated by RQL earlier, in which case the
bonus becomes immediately payabie; and

(o) a retention bonus of, say, 12 months of the Executive’s TRV, payable on completion
of the term by the Executive unless the term is renewed for a further period, or if the
Executive's employment is terminated by RQL during the final year without cause;

(6) the inclusion of a material adverse change clause with a trigger that includes RQL. ceasing to
be a control body for the purpose of the Racing Act 2002 (Qid), a change to either the make
up of the RQL Board, reporting lines for the Execulive or an organisational restructure, or a
reasonable expectation by the Executive of any of these triggers occurring, entitling
Executive o payment of:

APAC-#10820366-v2 2
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15 July 2011 NORTON ROSE

{a) a fixed amount equivalent to 12 months of each Executive's TRV as a material
adverse change severance payment;

(b} any accrued incentives (including any deferred incentives); and
(¢} alt other legal entitlements (such as accrued leave); and
{7 the Inclusion of a clause limiting the paymenis of benefits {as defined in the Act} paid in
connection with the termination to the Executive’s average annual base salary (as defined in
the Act).
2.4 In summary, the general effect of these benefits is that in circumstances of a termination or cessation

other than for misconduct, an Executive would become entitled lo a payment of up to {depending on
the Board's decision about the amount), 12 months TRV.

3 Background

General

3.1 We are insirucied thai without implementing a reascnab
considers it faces a real risk of the resignation of on
resignation of the Executives have serlous implicati
places at risk a smooth transition to an altern
change in the State Government.

Corporate status

3.2 RQL. is a company incorporated und
capilal.

3.3 None of the Executives
direstor of RQL.

3.4 BGL is not a “disclosin
payments made to persg

3.5 ors of RQL ar required to retire in rotaiion, two at every Annual
ear and then every second year thereafler.

3.6 ! ent industry conditions are cause for concern in retaining the

3.7 In particular, there s 0 oing industry speculation around the remova! of the Board and the

termination of the employment of the Executives if there is a change from the current Labor
Government lo a Liberal National Party (LNP) run Government in the next Staie election to be held

prior 1o June 2012,

3.8 This speculation stems from a number of comments made in Parliament by Shadow Minister for
Racing and member of the LNP Mr Ray Stevens MP.

3.9 For example, on 20 May 2010, as recorded in Hansard, Mr Stevens stated:
(1} “We believe that each racing code should have control over s own sector of the industry”™;

(2) “If this bill is passed, we commit to the overall racing industry that this legislation will be
dismantled and contrel will be given back to each of the codes”; and

APAC-#10820366-v2 3
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15 July 2011 NORTON ROSE

(3) “When the Libera! National Party wins government at 1he next State election we will
immediately dismantle this flawed and undemocratic legislation, and we will put control of the
three racing codes back into the hands of the industry participants”.

3,10 Mr Stevens has also strongly indicated his opposition to the current Chairman of RQL,
Mr Bob Bentiey, which he has most recently reiterated in Parliament on 25 May 2011.

311  As part of continued speculation in response to Mr Stevens’ statements, on 6 July 2011 the following
comments were published on the Letsgohorseracing.com.au webslite and appear to be indicative of

the ongoing speculation in the racing industry:

(1) “There is also strong specufaiion that two major roles will change at Racing Queenstand
under a new Board if the LNP wins Government and these are those of Chlef Executive
Officer Malcolm Tuttle and Director of Integrity Services Jamie Orchard”;

{2) “The greatest certainty — according to those who claim to, k'ﬁpw what the LNP has planned
for racing in Queensland — is that Malcolm Tuttle, the one-time steward who made a
meteoric rise to GEO under the Bentley-led Board, umped”; and

{3) “Malcolm Tuttle and Jeremy {sic} Orchard odds-on'to be e
current roles as Chief Executive Officer and Director of Inte

rier Mail on

3.12  This specutation is also reflected In the comm
‘as RQ Chief if the

4 July 2011 of "Huge tip that a country racing |
LNP wins power. And a former race club ¢hairm

Executive concerns

e Chairman of RQL has received a

318 culives raise concerns in relation to

3.14 asonable risks in relation to their future and are
any or new RQL Board retaining their services

3.15

3.16 ves indicates a real and apparent risk to RQL that it faces early

ves should their concerns be ignored.

3.17  Toadd lo the Ex cutives concern, each of the Fxecutives is engaged under Executive Employment
Agreements having'an explry date of 30 June 2013.

3.18  In this context, it would be prudent of any organisation to put in place appropriate measures to
ensure the ongoing Tetention of their senior executives, in our view.

4 Legal obllgations

4.1 Relevantly, there are a number of legal obligations which have to be considered when determining
the appropriate terms and conditions of employment and benefil structure. These are outlined in

more detail below.
Common law duty fo act in the best Interests of RQL

4.2 The Board must ensure thal any agreement made with the Execulives is made in the best interests
of RQL.

APAC-#10820366-v2 4
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4.3 Further, any agreement that amounis to unconscionable conduct against RQL by the Board carries
the risk that it may be set aside by a Court.

Obligation to act in good faith — section 181 of the Act

4.4 A director or other officer of a corporation must exercise their powers and discharge their duties in
good faith in the best interests of the corporation and for a proper purpose.

Use of position — Direciors, other officers and employees — section 182 of the Act

4.5 A director, secrelary, other officer or employee of a corporation must not improperly use their
position to gain an advantage for themselves or someone else or cause detriment to the corporation.

4.6 The directors must, of course, ensure that they are using their powers for a proper purpose. That is,
a purpose that is in the best Interests of RQL., when determining the appropriate level of
remuneration and reward.

Termination benefils to executives — Part 2D.2 of the A

4.7 Part 2D.2 of the Act places a restriction on the benefit th

4.8 Whether a person holds a managerial or execu
disclosing entity. For dascioslng entities, this Inc
directors’ report al any time in the 3 years prece

4.9 RAQL Is not a “disclosing entity” for th
that at least some, if not ali, of the Ex
financial year.

4,10  For all other corporale e
director {including “shad

, le someone with whose wishes the directors are
person that holds a position In connection with the
ctor of a related body corporate, at any time in

4.11

g, we consider the Board should take Part 2D.2 of the Act
termination benefits to provide to the Executives, because, in our

th these provisions would provide RQL with a defensible position that
sonable and in the bes! interests of RQL.

4.12

4,13  Essentially, Par{ 2D. the Act provides that benefits paid in connection with the termination cannot
be made without shareholder approval unless the benelits do not exceed the amount sel out in the

formula contained in the Act (Cap}.

414  The Cap varies depending on the lengih of time that the relevant executive has held a relevant
office. If the office has been held for more than 3 years, the value of the benefits must not exceed
the amount equal lo the average annual base salary that the person received during the last 3 years
of the relevant period (with the “relevant period" being the period or combined periods in which the
person has held the position).

5 " Relevant current arrangements

5.1 The Executive Employment Agreements all commenced on 1 July 2010 and have an expiry of 30
June 2013, unless terminated earlier In accordance with its terms.

APAC-#10820366-v2 5
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5.2 Clause 15 of each Executive Employment Agreement prdvides for termiration by RQL without cause
by giving six weeks notice and paying the TRV the Executive would have received for the balance of

the term.

53 Prior to 1 July 2012, RQL has an cbligation to negotiate any extension o the employment contract
beyond 30 June 2013.

6 Possible options

Change to remuneration

6.1 The industry specuiation in relation to the ongoing engagement of the Executives would, in our view,
justify an increase to the Executive’s remuneration to partially address the Executive’s concerns.

6.2 In determining what might be an appropriate Increase it would be beneficial to have regard to
comparable market rates to offer a package that will be attractive {o the Executives while ensuring

that it is reasonable having regard to each of their positions.

lion consultant, We can assist
reviewed the Emst & o
. the ASX 200 companies’ "

6.3 This information can be obtained by the engagement of a
you in Identifying an appropriate provider if you wish. W
Young Remuneratlon Practices in 2010 and 2011 1

6.4

the Board.

aintain a moderate increase to each of the

6.5 We censider thal it |
round longevity by Implementing the retention

Executive's TRV w

6.6

tn our view, it
that this plan

6.7

{1} a performanc _t;onus linked o the achievement of certain cutcomes, with payment of the
bonus deferred (say, until half-way through the term and then at the end of the term) and
conditional on the Executive remaining employed with RQL at that time, unless the
Executive’'s employment is terminated by RQL earlier, in which case the bonus becomes

immediately payable; and

{2) a retention bonus of, say, up to 12 months of the Executive’s TRV, payable on completion of
the term by the Executive unless the lerm Is renewed for a further period, or if the
Executive's employment Is terminated by RQL during the final year withowt cause.

6.8 We recommend that the deferred bonus plan is determined having regard o comparable plans in the
market. Helevantly, bonuses or incentives determined by the achiavement of measurable targets
are not included in the calculation of "benefils” for the purpose of the Cap.

6.9 ‘The retention bonus, on the other hand, would be considered as a "benefit” for the purpose of the
Cap as it is payable in connection with termination or cessation. However, in this case the other

APAC-#10820366-v2 4]
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15 July 2011 NORTON ROSE

benefits such as payment in lieu of notice, redundancy, or payment on the occurrence of a maleriai
adverse change would not apply.

Notice of termination without cause

6.10  Clause 15 of each Executive Employment Agreement currenily provides for termination by RQL
without cause by paying the TRV the Execulive would have received for the balance of the term.

6.1t We set out below our suggestion to increase the term to 5 years. On this basis, it is then a matter of
striking a balance between an excessive payment and a reasonable one.

6.12  As notice of termination s taken into account in the calculation of termination payments under the
Act, it would be appropriate here to limit the amount to that which would not breach the Act. Under
the Act, the actual period of nolice should not, when combined with the value of all other termination
benefits, exceed the Cap. Any amount higher than this could be viewed as being inconsistent with
the duties the Board owes to RQL under the Act,

up to 12 months would be

L would be reduced pro-rata if
, the retention payment
payment at the same

6.13  Soin the normal course, we would suggest that a notice pe
reasonable depending on the senicrity of the Executives. 4
notice of termination is given In the final year of the te
wouid be payable. For that reason, we recommend
amount as the notice period.

Redundancy payments

.14  Currently, there is no entitlement fo a payment on term n of employment due to redundancy.

6.15  We are also not aware of any policles ‘dpplicable to the Executives of other employees of RQL that

contain redundancy entittements.

genuine re Gy & reas able payment that is made in

6.16  Under the Act, where the
to all em joﬁees of RQL on the basis of a person's service in

accerdance with a pohcy that ap
an office or postition. '
purposes of the Cap

6.17

6.18

6.1 An option available t .QL is the inclusion of a material adverse change clause. Under a material
adverse change clause the Executive will be able to terminate the employment agreement on the
trigger of a material adverse change and receive a payment. Examples of material adverse changes
include RQL ceasing to be a control body for the purpose of the Racing Act 2002 (Qld}, or a change
in either the make up of the RQL Board, reporting lines for the Executive or an organisational

restructure,

6.20  If there is a malerial adverse change, the Executive has the right to resign and if he or she does so,
will be entitled to payment. The payment would be a fixed payment of, say, no more than 12

months.

6.21  As an additional protection for RQL, we recommend making the payment conditional upon the
execution of a deed of release, and a commitment for the Executive to serve a short transition period

unless otherwise agreed.

APAC-#10820366-v2 7
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Extension to term

6.22  Any variation to the terms of the Executive Employment Agreements will provide RQL with an
opportunity to extend the term of each Executive’s engagement.

6.23  One option would be for RQL to offer the Executives permanent employment (subject to notice).
Permanent employment, combined with the 12 months notice of termination, would in our view
ensure the ongoing employment of the Executives and allow for a smooth transition resulting from

any change to RQL's structure.

6.24  However, it is more likely that the offer of permanent employment would attract a higher level of
public scrutiny and criticism. While we consider that your position would be defensible from a legal
perspective, you may like to consider a more conservative approach in order fo minimise the

possible negative pubiicity.

8.25  As an alternative, you could offer an extension to the current term fihe Executive’s engagement of
anew 3 year term (eg from August 2011 to August 2014). In our view however, it would be
reasonable in the circumstances (especially if the other ben out above are adopted) to adopt
a 5 year term {subject to noiice as discussed above at parg ). Our view has regard to our
general understanding that 5 year terms {terminable on 12 :months notice) are not uncommon for ¢

Yours faithfully

Murray Procter

Partner

Norton Rose Australia
Contact: Kristin Gamble
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